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ONEIKE M ICKHALE BARNETT

and

DAM ION BRYAN BARRETT,

Defendants.

INDIC TM ENT

The Grand Jury charges that:

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

1. The Western Union Company (hereinafter, ilWestel'n Union'') offers consumer-to-

consumer money transfer services. Consumers in the United States can send funds at agent

locations, by phone, or online. Receivers can pick up available funds at an agent location.

W estern Union has agent locations across the United States, in Jamaica, and elsewhere.

2. Moneygram lnternational lnc. (hereinaher, tdMoneyGram'') offers consumer-to-

consum er money transfer services. Consumers in the United States can send funds at agent

locations. Receivers can pick up available funds at an agent location. M oneyGram has agent

locations across the United States, in Jam aica, and elsewhere.

3. Jamaica National Overseas (USA) lnc. (hereinafter, tilamaica National'') is a

subsidiary of Jamaiean National Building Society, a Jamaican finaneial institution, whieh offers
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consum er-to-consum er money transfer services. Jamaica National provides international money

transfer services between Jam aica and other countries, including the United States.

COUNT 1

Conspiracy

(18 U.S.C. jj 1349 and 2326)

The allegations contained in paragraphs 1 thzough 3 of this Indictment are

realleged and incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein.

5. From in or about October 2008, through in or about January 2012, in Broward

County, in the Southern District of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendants,

ONEIK E M ICK H ALE BARNETT

and

DAM ION BRYAN BARRETT,

in connection with the conduct of telemarketing, did knowingly and willfully combine, conspire,

confederate and agree with each other and others, known and unknown to the Grand Jury, to

commit wire fraud, that is, to knowingly and with intent to defraud devise and intend to devise a

scheme and artifiee to defraud, and to obtain money and property from others by means of

materially false and fraudulent pretenses, representations, and promises, knowing that they were

false and fraudulent when made, and did transmit and cause to be transmitted certain wire

communications in interstate and foreign com merce, for the purpose of executing the scheme

and artitice, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1343.

OBJECT OF THE CONSPIR ACY

The object of the conspiracy was for the defendants ONEIKE M ICKHALE

BARNETT and DAM ION BRYAN BARRETT, mzd their co-conspirators, to fraudulently

emich themselves by falsely infonuing elderly victims that the victims had won a large amount

of money in a lottery, inducing the victims to pay fees in advance of receiving their purported
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lottery winnings, and keeping the victim s' money for the defendants' and their co-conspirators'

own benefit without paying any lottery winnings.

M ANNER AND M EANS OF THE CONSPIRACY

The marmer and means by which defendants ONEIKE M ICKHALE BARNETT and

DAM ION BRYAN BARRETT, and their co-conspirators, sought to accomplish the object of

the conspiraey included the following:

Defendants ONEIKE M ICKHALE BARNETT and DAM ION BRYAN

BARRETT, residents of the Country of Jamaiea, contaded and eaustd to be contaded, elderly

victims in the United States who were falsely informed that they had won millions of dollars in a

lottery. Defendants ONEIKE M ICKHALE BARNETT and DAM ION BRYAN BARRETT

persuaded and caused the elderly victim s to be persuaded that they needed to pay bogus fees of

several hundred to several thousand dollars in order to collect their purported lottery winnings.

8. Defendants ONEIK E M ICKHALE BARNETT and DAM ION BRYAN

BARRETT sent and caused to be sent communications to elderly victims in the United States

that purported to be from a genuine sweepstakes company and federal agencies, including the

lnternal Revenue Service and the Federal Reserve. These communications discussed the

victims' purported lottery winnings.

9. Defendants O NEIKE M ICK H ALE BARNETT and DAM ION BRYAN

BARRETT contacted and caused to be contacted the elderly victim s who were instructed on

how, and to whom , to send the bogus fees. Defendants ONEIK E M ICKHALE BARNETT

and DAM ION BRYAN BARRETT instruded and eaused the vidims to be instruded to wire

the money through W estern Union and M oneyGram to themselves and to other people. At other

times, defendants instnlcted and caused the victims to be instnlcted to send the money tluough

the U.S. m ail and a private courier to another person.
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10. Defendants ONEIK E M ICK H ALE BARNETT and DAM ION BRYAN

BARRETT caused an individual who used the aliases çsloeith Jones,'' ûsDuriel Green,''

SkReginald Oden,'' and variations of those names, to receive victims' money in Broward County,

in the Southern District of Florida.

1 1. Defendant ONEIKE M ICK HALE BARNETT recnzited an individual whose

initials were R.R. to receive victims' money in Broward County, in the Southern District of

Florida.

1 2 .

BA TT caused the individual who used the aliases l'Keith Jones,'' çtDuriel Green,'' StReginald

Defendants ONEIKE M ICKHALE BARNETT and DAM ION BRYAN

Oden,'' as well as R.R., and others (the tdmiddlemen'') to transmit the victims' money to them in

Jam aica. The m iddlemen would keep a portion of the victim s' m oney for themselves and

transm it the rest to the defendants via W estern Union, M oneyGram , Jamaica National, and other

m eans.

13. Defendants ONEIK E M ICKH ALE BARNETT and DAM ION BRYAN

BARRETT received the victims' money via W estern Union, M oneyGram, Jamaica National,

and other means, while residing in Jam aica.

14. Defendant ONEIK E M ICKHALE BARNETT directed R.R. to travel from the

United States to Jam aica with victims' money that R.R. had received from the elderly victim s.

R.R. m et defendant ONEIKE M ICKHALE BARNETT in Jam aica and gave him the victim s'

m oney.

15.

to defendant ONEIKE M ICKHALE BARNETT via W estern Union and Jamaica National.

An individual whose initials were M .Y. transmitted money from the United States

16. Defendants ONEIKE M ICKHALE BARNETT and DAM ION BRYAN

4

Case 0:12-cr-60186-WJZ   Document 3   Entered on FLSD Docket 08/09/2012   Page 4 of 15



BARRETT contacted and caused elderly victims to be contacted numerous times with

additional requests for bogus fees. Defendants falsely told and caused som e of the victim s to be

told that the victim 's lottery winnings were delayed due to an administrative difficulty.

Defendants falsely told and caused some victims to be told that the lottery prize was larger than

originally thought. This process continued for as long as the particular victim could be

persuaded to send additional money.

Defendants ONEIKE M ICKHALE BARNETT and DAM ION BRYAN

BARRETT used different methods designed to make their scheme appear legitimate, including

claiming, at times, to be a lawyer and a banker, and utilizing Voice Over lntelmet Protocol

technology to make it appear to victim s that the defendants were calling from telephones located

in the United States.

Defendants ONEIK E M ICK H ALE BARNETT and DAM ION BRYAN

BARRETT, and their co-conspirators, victim ized at least ten persons over the age of 55.

A1l in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1349 and 2326.

CO UNTS 2 - 38

W ire Fraud

(18 U.S.C. jj 1343 and 2326)

1 9. The allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 3, and 7 through 18, of this

Indictm ent are realleged and incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein.

20. From in or about October 2008, tluough in or about January 2012, in Broward

County, in the Southern District of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendants,

ONEIKE M ICK H ALE BARNETT

and

DAM IO N BRYAN BARRETT,

in connection with the conduct of telemarketing, did knowingly and with intent to defraud devise
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and intend to devise a schem e and artifice to defraud and to obtain m oney by means of

materially false and fraudulent pretenses, representations, and prom ises, knowing that they were

false and fraudulent when made, and did transmit and cause to be transmitted, by means of wire

communications in interstate and foreign commerce, certain writings, signs, signals, pictures,

and sounds.

PURPOSE OF THE SCHEM E AND ARTIFICE

The purpose of the scheme and artitice was as follows:

21. The defendants ONEIKE M ICKHALE BARNETT and DAM ION BRYAN

BARRETT, and other participants in the scheme, would fraudulently enrich them selves by

falsely informing elderly victims that the victims had won a large amount of money in a lottery,

inducing the victims to pay fees in advance of receiving their purported lottery winnings, and

keeping the victims' money for the defendants' and other participants' own benefit without

paying any lottery wilm ings.

THE SCHEM E AN D ARTIFICE

22. Paragraphs 7 through 1 8 of the Manner and M eans section of Count 1 of this

lndictm ent are re-alleged and incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein as a

description of the schem e and artifice.

USE OF THE W IRES

23. On or about the dates specified as to each count below, in the Southem  District of

Florida and elsewhere, defendants ONEIKE M IC K H ALE BARNETT and DAM ION

BRYAN BARRETT, for the purpose of executing the aforesaid scheme and artifice did

knowingly cause to be transmitted, by means of wire communications in interstate and foreign

commerce, certain writings, signs, signals, pictures, and sounds, as more particularly described
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below :

COUNT APPROXIM ATE DESCRIPTION O F

DATE W IRE CO M M UNICATION

2 Apxil 2, 2009 $450 W estern Union money transfex from victim

D.U . in Burnsville, North Carolina, to çiKeith

Jones'' in Lauderhill, Florida.

3 April 3, 2009 $250 W estel'n Union money transfer from victim

D .U. in Burnsville, North Carolina, to çtKeith

Jones'' in W ilton M anors, Florida.

4 April 7, 2009 $800 W estern Union money transfer from victim
D.U. in Bum sville, North Carolina, to tkloeith

Jones'' in Oakland Park, Florida.

5 April 10, 2009 $300 W estenz Union money transfer from victim

D.U. in Spruce Pine, North Carolina, to çsKeith

Jones'' in Oakland Park, Florida.

6 April 14, 2009 $300 W estern Union money transfer from victim

E.S. in M anitowoc, W isconsin, to Slloieth Jones''

rsicj in Oakland Park, Florida.

7 April 17, 2009 $1,000 W estern Union money transfer from

victim D.U. in Spruce Pine, North Carolina, to

i'Keith Jones'' in W ilton M anors, Florida.

8 April 17, 2009 $2,350 W estern Union money transfer from
SçReginald Oden'' in Miramar, Florida, to
ONEIKE M IK HALE BARNETT in M ontego

Bay, Jam aica.
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COUNT AIV ROXIM ATE DESCRIPTION O F

DATE W IRE COM M UNICATION

9 April 23, 2009 $100 W estern Union money transfer from victim

D.U. in Burnsville, North Carolina, to ûkKeith

Jones'' in M iramar, Florida.

10 M ay 7, 2009 $750 W estern Union money transfer from victim

D.U . in Burnsville, North Carolina, to çtKeith

Jones'' in Fort Lauderdale, Florida.

1 1 June 1 1 , 2009 $ 1,740 W estern Union money transfer from
liReginald Oden'' in Pembroke Pines, Florida, to

DAM ION BRYAN BA RRETT in M ontego Bay,
Jamaica.

12 June 17, 2009 $ 150 W estern Union money transfer from victim

O .Y. in Lakewood, Colorado, to l'Keith Jones'' in

M iam i, Florida.

13 June 18, 2009 $200 W estern Union money transfer from victim

O.Y. in Lakewood, Colorado, to ldKeith Jones'' in

W ilton M anors, Florida.

14 June 18, 2009 $2,500 W estern Union money transfer from

victim O.Y. in Lakewood, Colorado, to ççKeith

Jones'' in Fort Lauderdale, Florida.

15 June 19, 2009 $200 W estern Union money transfer from victim

O.Y. in Lakewood, Colorado, to ilKeith Jones'' in

Oakland Park, Florida.

16 July 24, 2010 $2,500 W estern Union money transfer from M .Y.

in Lauderhill, Florida, to O NEIK E M ICKH ALE

BARNETT in Jam aica.
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COUNT APPROXIM ATE DESCRIPTION O F

DATE W IRE COM M UNICATION

17 July 26, 2010 $2,500 W estern Union money transfer from M .Y.

in Lauderhill, Florida, to ONEIKE M ICKHALE

BARNETT in Jam aica.

18 July 27, 2010 $2,400 W estern Union money transfer from M .Y.
in Lauderhill, Florida, to ONEIKE M ICKHALE

BARNETT in Jamaica.

19 August 19, 2010 $2,500 W estern Union money transfer from M .Y.

in Tam arac, Florida, to ONEIKE M ICKHALE

BARNETT in Jamaica.

20 August 20, 2010 $2,500 W estern Union money transfer from M .Y.

in Lauderhill, Florida, to ONEIK E M ICKH ALE

BARNETT in Jam aica.

21 August 21, 2010 $2,500 W estern Union money transfer from M .Y.

in Lauderhill, Florida, to ONEIKE M ICKHALE

BARNETT in Jamaica.

22 August 23, 2010 $2,500 W estern Union money transfer from M .Y.

in Lauderhill, Florida, to ONEIKE M ICKHALE

BARNETT in Jamaica.

23 September 28, 2010 $2,500 Jamaica National money transfer from R.R.

in Lauderhill, Florida, to ONEIKE M ICKHALE

BARNETT in Jam aica.

24 October 5, 2010 $2,500 Jamaica National money transfer from R.R.

in Lauderhill, Florida, to ONEIK E M ICK HALE

BARNETT in Jam aica.

25 October 9, 2010 $2,500 Jamaica National money transfer from R.R.

in Lauderhill, Florida, to ONEIKE M ICK HALE

BARNETT in Jam aica.

26 October 1 1, 2010 $2,500 Jamaica National money transfer from R.R.

in Lauderhill, Florida, to ONEIKE M ICKHALE

BARNETT in Jamaica.
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COUNT APPROXIM ATE DESCRIPTIO N OF

DATE W IRE COM M UNICA TIO N

27 October 14, 2010 $2,500 Jamaica National money transfer from R.R.

in Lauderhill, Florida, to ONEIKE M ICKHALE

BARNETT in Jam aica.

28 October 25, 2010 $2,500 Jamaica National money transfer from R,R.
in Lauderhill, Florida, to O NEIK E M ICKH ALE

BARNETT in Jam aica.

29 October 29, 2010 $2,500 Jamaica National money transfer from R.R.

in Lauderhill, Florida, to ONEIKE M ICKHALE

BARNETT in Jamaica.

30 November 6, 2010 $765 Jamaica National money transfer from M .Y.

in Lauderhill, Florida, to ONEIKE M ICKHALE

BARNETT in Jamaica.

31 September 1, 201 1 $600 Jamaica National money transfer from R.R. in

Lauderhill, Florida, to O NEIK E M ICKH ALE

BARNETT in Jamaica.

32 September 1, 201 1 $280 W estern Union money transfer from R.R. in

Fort Lauderdale, Florida, to ONEIKE

M ICKHALE BARNETT in Jamaica.

33 September 1, 201 1 $280 W estern Union money transfer from R.R. in

Fo14 Lauderdale, Florida, to ONEIKE

M ICKHALE BARNETT in Jamaica.

34 September 2, 201 1 $300 W estern Union money transfer from R.R. in

Fort Lauderdale, Florida, to ONEIKE

M ICKH ALE BARNETT in Jam aica.

35 September 3, 201 1 $1,020 Jamaica National money transfer from M .Y.

in Lauderhill, Florida, to ONEIKE M ICKHALE

BARNETT in Jamaica.
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COUNT APPROXIM ATE DESCRIPTION OF

DATE W IRE COM M UNICATION

36 September 10, 201 1 $450 W estern Union money transfer from R.R. in

Lauderhill, Florida, to O NEIKE M ICKH ALE

BARNETT in Jam aica.

37 September 12, 201 1 $450 W estelm Union money transfer from R.R. in
Lauderhill, Florida, to ONEIKE M ICKH ALE

BARNETT in Jam aica.

38 September 14, 201 1 $450 W estern Union money transfer from R.R. in

Lauderhill, Florida, to ONEIKE M ICKHALE

BARNETT in Jam aica.

A11 in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1343, 2326, and 2.

FO R FEITURE

The allegations of Counts 1 through 38 of this lndictment are re-alleged and

incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein, for the purpose of alleging forfeitures

pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 982(a)(8) and Title 28, United States Code,

Section 2461(c).

Upon conviction of any of the offenses alleged in Counts 1 through 38 of this

lndictment, the defendants shall forfeit to the United States, pursuant to Title l 8, United Sates

Code, Section 982(a)(8), any property, real or personal, constituting, derived from, or traceable

to the gross proceeds that the defendants obtained, directly or indirectly, as the result of the

violations of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1349, 1343, and 2326, and any property, real

or personal, that was used or intended to be used to commit, to facilitate, or to promote the

com mission of such offense.
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All pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Sections 982(a)(8) and 982(b)(1); and the

procedures of Title 21, United States Code, Section 853.

A TRUE BILL

FOREPERSON

. 
'

W IFREDO .FERRER

UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

B A R. M ITRANI

A SSISTANT UN ITED STATES ATTORNEY

b b
JE FREY TEG

SENIOR LITIGATION COUN SEL

U .S. DEPARTM ENT OF JU STICE

KATHRYN M . DRENN G

TRIAL ATTORNEY

U.S. DEPARTM ENT OF JU STICE
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

UNITED STATES OF AM ERICA

VS.

Oneike Mickhale Barnett and
Damion Bryan Barrett,

Defendants.
I

Coud Division: (select one)

CASE NO.

CERTIFICATE OF TRIAL ATTORNEY*

Superseding Case Information:

New Defendantls) Yes No
Number of New Defendants
Total number of countsMiami

FTL

I do hereby certify that:

Key W est
W PB FTP

I have carefully considered the allegations of the indictment, the number of defendants! the number of
robable witnesses and the Iegal complexities of the lndictment/lnformation attached hereto.17

I am aware that the information supplied on thij statement will be relied upon by the Judges of this
Court in setting their calendars and scheduling crlminal trials underthe mandate of the Speedy Trial Act,
Title 28 U.S.C. Section 3161.

Iqterpreter: (Yes qr No) Nn
LIst Ianguage and/or dlalect

This case will take ln days for the parties to try.

Please check appropriate category and type of offense Iisted below:

(Check only one)

0 to 5 days
6 to 10 days
11 to 20 days
21 to 60 days
61 days and over

2 .

3.

4 .

5.

6. Has this case been previously filed in this District Court? (Yes or No) Nn
lf yes:
Judge: Case No.
(Attach copy of dispositive order)
Has a complaint been filed in this matter? (Yes or No) Nn
If yes:
Magistrate Case No.
Related Miscellaneous numbers:
Defendantls) in federal custody as of
Defendantts) in state custody as of
Rule 20 from the District of

ls this a potential death penalty case? (Yes or No) Nn

(Check only one)

Petty
Minor
Misdem .
Felony

Does this case originate from a matter pending in the Nodhern Region of the U.S. Attorney's Office prior
to October 14, 2003? Yes X No

8. Does this case originate from a matter pen ' g in the C ntral Regtpn of the U.S. Attorney's O#ice prior
to September 1, 2007? Yes X

R. Mitrani
ssistant United States Attorney
Florida Bar No./court N0.88171

*penalty Sheetts) attached REv 4/8/08
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT CO URT

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLO RIDA

PENALTY SHEET

Defendant's Nam e: Dam ion Bryan Barrett

Case No:

Counts #: 1

Consniracv to Comm it W ire Fraud

in violation of 18 U.S.C. k 1349 and 2326

* M ax. Penalty: Thirty (30) years imprisonment; five (5) year supelwised release; $250,000 fine
or not more than the greater of twice the gross gain or twice the gross loss, unless imposition of a

fine under this subsection would unduly com plicate or prolong the sentencing process

Counts #: 2-38

W ire Fraud

in violation of 18 U.S.C. 6 1343 and 2326

*M ax. Penalty: Thirty (30) years imprisonment; tive (5) year supervised release; $250,000 fine
or not more than the greater of twice the gross gain or twice the gross loss, unless imposition of a

fine under this subsection would unduly
-
complicate or prolong the sentencing process

Count #:

*M ax. Penalty:

Count #:

*M ax. Penalty:

*ltefers only to possible term of incarceration, does not include possible fines, restitution,

special assessm ents, parole term s, or forfeitures that m ay be applicable.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

SO UTH ERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

PENALTY SHEET

Defendant's Nam e: Oneike M ickhale Barnett

Case No:

Counts #: 1

Conspiracy to Com mit W ire Fraud

in violation of 18 U.S.C. $ 1349 and 2326

* Max. Penalty: Thirty (30) years imprisonment; five (5) year supervised release; $250,000 fine
or not more than the greater of twice the gross gain or twice the gross loss, unless imposition of a

fine under this subsection would unduly complicate or prolong the sentencing process

Counts #: 2-38

W ire Fraud

in violation of 18 U.S.C. i 1343 and 2326

*Max. Penalty: Thirty (30) years imprisonment; five (5) year supervised release; $250,000 fine
or not m ore than the greater of twice the gross gain or twice the gross loss, unless imposition of a

fine under this subsection would unduly complicate or prolong the sentencing process

Count #:

*M ax. Penalty:

Count #:

*M ax. Penalty:

ARefers only to possible term of incarceration, does not include possible fines, restitution,

special assessments, parole term s, or forfeitures that m ay be applicable.
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